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CONSENT AGREEMENT

I.  NATURE OF ACTION

. This is an administrative penalty assessment proceeding brought under Section 113(d) of the
Clean Air Act (“CAA” or the “Act”), 42 U.S.C. 8 7413(d), and Sections 22.13(b) and 22.18 of
the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties
and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), as codified at
Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), Part 22.

. This Consent Agreement and the attached Final Order shall collectively be referred to as the
CAFO.

. Having found that settlement is consistent with the provisions and objectives of the Act and

applicable regulations, the Parties have agreed to settle this action pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18
and consent to the entry of this CAFO without Respondent’s admission of violation or any
adjudication of any issues of law or fact herein.

Il.  PARTIES

. Complainant is the Director of the Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division, United
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 4, who has been delegated the authority
on behalf of the Administrator of the EPA to enter into this CAFO pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 22
and Section 113(d) of the Act.

Respondent is DPC Enterprises, L.P., a limited partnership doing business in the State of
Alabama. This proceeding pertains to Respondent’s facility located at 1200 Jarvis Road, Mobile,
Alabama 36611 (Facility).
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I1l. GOVERNING LAW

6. Any person who violates Section 112(r) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), or rule promulgated
thereunder, may be assessed a civil penalty pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §
7413(d), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19. Each day a violation continues may constitute a separate
violation. Civil penalties under Section 113(d) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), may be assessed
by an administrative order.

7. Section 112(r) of the Act 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), addresses the prevention of release of substances
listed pursuant to Section 112(r)(3) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(3), and other extremely
hazardous substances. The purpose of this section is to prevent the accidental release of
extremely hazardous substances and to minimize the consequences of such releases. Pursuant to
Section 112(r)(7) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 8 7412(r)(7), the EPA is authorized to promulgate
regulations for accidental release prevention.

8. Pursuant to Sections 112(r)(3) and 112(r)(7) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 88 7412(r)(3) and 7412(r)(7),
the EPA promulgated rules codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Chemical Accident Prevention
Provisions. These regulations are collectively referred to as the “Risk Management Program”
(RMProgram) and apply to an owner or operator of a stationary source that has a threshold
quantity of a regulated substance in a process. Pursuant to Sections 112(r)(3) and 112(r)(5) of the
Act, 42 U.S.C. 8§ 7412(r)(3) and 7412(r)(5), the list of regulated substances and threshold levels
are codified at 40 C.F.R. § 68.130.

9. Pursuant to Section 112(r)(7)(B)(iii) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(7)(B)(iii), and 40 C.F.R. 88
68.10 and 68.150, the owner or operator of a stationary source that has a regulated substance in
an amount equal to or in excess of the applicable RMProgram threshold in a “process” as defined
in 40 C.F.R. 8 68.3, must develop an RMProgram accidental release prevention program, and
submit and register a single Risk Management Plan (RMPIan) to the EPA.

10. The EPA and the United States Department of Justice jointly determined that this matter,
although it involves alleged violations that occurred more than one year before the initiation of
this proceeding, is appropriate for an administrative penalty assessment. 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d); 40
C.F.R.§194.

IV.  FINDINGS OF FACTS

11. Respondent is the owner and/or operator of the Facility, which is a “stationary source” as that
term is defined by Section 112(r)(2)(C) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 8 7412(r)(2)(C).

12. Respondent has registered an RMPlan with the EPA for its Facility and has developed an
RMProgram accidental release prevention program for the Facility.

13. On July 11, 2023, the EPA issued to Respondent a Notice of Potential Violation and Opportunity
to Confer (“NOPVOC”), providing notice that the EPA found that Respondent potentially
committed the alleged violations described in Section V of this Agreement and providing
Respondent an opportunity to confer with the EPA. On July 27, 2023, representatives of
Respondent and the EPA held a meeting to discuss the NOPVOC.
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14. At its Facility:

L

Respondent operates a compressed gas repacking plant.

b. Respondent has on-site for use, 750,000 pounds of chlorine and 295,000 pounds
of sulfur dioxide.

c. Respondent has two RMProgram level 3 covered processes, which store or

otherwise use chlorine and sulfur dioxide in an amount exceeding their applicable

thresholds of 2,500 pounds and 10,000, respectively.

15. On March 16, 2023, the EPA conducted an on-site inspection of the RMProgram related records
and equipment for the purpose of assessing the Respondent’s compliance with the RMProgram
requirements and the implemented recognized and generally accepted good engineering practices
(RAGAGEP) for its covered process at its Facility.

16. At the time of the inspection, EPA observed the following:

a. The Respondent failed to document that equipment complies with RAGAGEP because:
i.  Surface corrosion was present on chlorine and sulfur dioxide piping and pipe fittings,
as well as piping associated with the barometric loop. In addition, sulfur dioxide
piping from the railcar to the filling station that passes through the metal wall of the
filling building was in direct contact with the wall, likely causing localized corrosion

at the entry point. Chlorine Institute Pamphlet 6, Piping Systems for Dry Chlorine,
Edition 17 (2020), Section 2.1 (g) states, “Inspect all chlorine piping systems at
regular intervals for signs of leakage, internal or external corrosion, insulation
failure, adequate identification and supports.” Additionally, Chlorine Institute
Pamphlet 6, Piping Systems for Dry Chlorine, Edition 17 (2020), Section 12.2 states,
“As part of a good overall preventative maintenance program, consideration should
be given to ensuring that the following items are checked periodically and corrected
as needed ... paint condition. Consideration should be given to repainting on a
regular basis, with timing determined by individual site conditions. This will
maximize pipe life and minimize leaks by minimizing external corrosion.” Finally,
Chlorine Institute Pamphlet 6, Piping Systems for Dry Chlorine, Edition 17 (2020),
Section 10.1 states, “If chlorine piping must pass through a wall or bulkhead, proper
clearances around the pipe must be maintained.”

ii.  Piping carrying chlorine and sulfur dioxide, as well as other hazardous chemicals,
was suspended and secured by temporary fabric straps rather than appropriate piping
supports. In one instance, chlorine piping was being used to support other piping.
Chlorine Institute Pamphlet 6, Piping Systems for Dry Chlorine, Edition17 (2020),
Section 10.2 states, “Piping should be adequately supported to prevent sagging and
resting on structural steel. Do not hang other piping from chlorine lines and,
conversely, do not hang chlorine lines from other piping. Piping should be supported
with hangers or pipe shoes that do not allow metal to metal wear or corrosion.”

b. Operating procedures were developed at a corporate level and provided to each of the
DPC Enterprises, L.P. sites. Operating procedures were not site specific and were not
consistent with the tasks being performed at the Facility. For example, Step 3 of standard
operating procedure (SOP) 6.2 Cylinder Blowdown Instructions states, “Determine which
cylinders contain excessive product (if it is desired to allow segregating “light” cylinders
from “heavy” cylinders) by weighing cylinders on scales or connecting to a “quick check”
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device.” According to the Facility staff, rather than weighing cylinders, they place heavy
cylinders that likely contain liquid chlorine on the left side of the blowdown station and
the lighter cylinders that are likely empty on the right side of the blowdown station.
Therefore, the steps employed at a facility-level were not consistent with the written SOP,
which indicates that DPC Enterprises, L.P. had failed to assure operating procedures were
reviewed as often as necessary to assure that they reflect current operating practice.

V. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

17. Respondent is a “person” as defined in Section 302(e) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(e).

18. Based on EPA’s compliance monitoring investigation, the EPA alleges that the Respondent
violated 40 C.F.R. Part 68, the codified rules governing the Act’s Chemical Accident Prevention
Provisions and Section 112(r) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), when it:

a.

b.

Failed to document that equipment complies with RAGAGEP, as required by 40
C.F.R. 8 68.65(d)(2); and

Failed to ensure operating procedures were reviewed as often as necessary to
assure that they reflect current operating practice, including changes that result
from changes in process chemicals, technology, and equipment, and changes to
stationary sources. The owner or operator failed to certify annually that these
operating procedures are current and accurate, as required by 40 C.F.R. §
68.69(c).

VI. STIPULATIONS

19. The issuance of this CAFO simultaneously commences and concludes this proceeding. 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.13(b).

20. For the purpose of this proceeding, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2), Respondent:

a.
b.

C.
d.
e.

f.

admits that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter alleged in this CAFO;
neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set forth in Section IV (Findings
of Facts) of this CAFO;

consents to the assessment of a civil penalty as stated below;

consents to the conditions specified in this CAFO;

waives any right to contest the allegations set forth in Section V (Alleged
Violations) of this CAFO; and

waives its rights to appeal the Final Order accompanying this CAFO.

21. For the purpose of this proceeding, Respondent:

a.

b.

agrees that this CAFO states a claim upon which relief may be granted against
Respondent;

acknowledges that this CAFO constitutes an enforcement action for purposes of
considering Respondent’s compliance history in any subsequent enforcement
actions;

waives any rights it may possess at law or in equity to challenge the authority of
EPA to bring a civil action in a United States District Court to compel compliance
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with the CAFO, and to seek an additional penalty for such noncompliance, and
agrees that federal law shall govern in any such civil action;

d. by executing this CAFO, certifies to the best of its knowledge that Respondent is
currently in compliance with all relevant requirements of the Act and its
implementing regulations, and that all violations alleged herein, which are neither
admitted nor denied, have been corrected;

e. waives any right it may have pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 8 22.8 to be present during
any discussions with, or to be served with and reply to, any memorandum or
communication addressed to EPA officials where the purpose of such discussion,
memorandum, or communication is to persuade such official to accept and issue
this CAFO; and

f. agrees to comply with the terms of this CAFO.

22. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.5, the individuals named in the certificate of service are
authorized to receive service related to this proceeding and the parties agree to receive service by
electronic means.

VIl.  TERMS OF PAYMENT

23. Respondent agrees to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $5,022.00 (“Assessed Penalty’) within
thirty (30) calendar days after the Effective Date of this CAFO.

24. Respondent shall pay the Assessed Penalty and any interest, fees, and other charges due using
any method, or combination of appropriate methods, as provided on the EPA website:
https://www.epa.gov/financial/makepayment. For additional instructions see:
https://www.epa.gov/financial/additional -instructions-making-payments-epa.

25. When making a payment, Respondent shall:

a. ldentify every payment with Respondent’s name and the docket number of this
Agreement, Docket No. CAA-04-2024-0303(b), and

b. Concurrently with any payment or within 24 hours of any payment, Respondent shall
serve proof of such payment to the following persons:

Regional Hearing Clerk
r4_regional_hearing_clerk@epa.gov

and

Justin Stark

North Air Enforcement Section

Air Enforcement Branch

Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
Stark.Justin@epa.gov

and

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Cincinnati Finance Center
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Via electronic mail to:
CINWD AcctsReceivable@epa.gov

“Proof of payment” means, as applicable, a copy of the check, confirmation of credit card
or debit card payment, or confirmation of wire or automated clearinghouse transfer, and
any other information required to demonstrate that payment has been made according to
EPA requirements, in the amount due, and identified with the appropriate docket number
and Respondent’s name.

26. Interest, Charges, and Penalties on Late Payments. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5), 31
U.S.C.8§3717,31 C.F.R. §901.9, and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, if Respondent fails to timely pay
any portion of the Assessed Penalty per this Agreement, the entire unpaid balance of the
Assessed Penalty and all accrued interest shall become immediately due and owing, and
EPA is authorized to recover the following amounts.

a. Interest. Interest begins to accrue from the Effective Date. If the Assessed Penalty
is paid in full within thirty (30) days, interest accrued is waived. If the Assessed
Penalty is not paid in full within thirty (30) days, interest will continue to accrue
until any unpaid portion of the Assessed Penalty as well as any interest, penalties,
and other charges are paid in full. Per 42 U.S.C. § 7524(c)(6), interest will be
assessed pursuant to 26 U.S.C. 8 6621(a)(2), that is the IRS standard underpayment
rate, equal to the Federal short-term rate plus 3 percentage points.

b. Handling Charges. The United States’ enforcement expenses including, but not
limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs of handling collection.

c. Late Payment Penalty. A ten percent (10%) quarterly non-payment penalty.

27. Late Penalty Actions. In addition to the amounts described in the prior Paragraph, if
Respondent fails to timely pay any portion of the Assessed Penalty per this Agreement, EPA
may take additional actions. Such actions EPA may take include, but are not limited to, the
following.

a. Refer the debt to a credit reporting agency or a collection agency, per 40 C.F.R.
88 13.13 and 13.14.

b. Collect the debt by administrative offset (i.e., the withholding of money payable by
the United States government to, or held by the United States government for, a
person to satisfy the debt the person owes the United States government), which
includes, but is not limited to, referral to the Internal Revenue Service for offset
against income tax refunds, per 40 C.F.R. Part 13, Subparts C and H.

c. Suspend or revoke Respondent’s licenses or other privileges, or suspend or
disqualify Respondent from doing business with EPA or engaging in programs
EPA sponsors or funds, per 40 C.F.R. § 13.17.

d. Request that the Attorney General bring a civil action in the appropriate district
court to enforce the Final Order and recover the full remaining balance of the
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Assessed Penalty, in addition to interest and the amounts described above,
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 8 7413(d)(5). In any such action, the validity, amount, and
appropriateness of the Assessed Penalty and Final Order shall not be subject to
review.

28. Allocation of Payments. Pursuant to 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(f) and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(d), a
partial payment of debt will be applied first to outstanding handling charges, second to
late penalty charges, third to accrued interest, and last to the principal that is the
outstanding Assessed Penalty amount.

29. Tax Treatment of Penalties. Penalties, interest, and other charges paid pursuant to this
Agreement shall not be deductible for purposes of federal taxes.

VIIl. EFFECT OF CAFO

30. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(c), Respondent’s full compliance with this CAFO shall
only resolve Respondent’s liability for federal civil penalties for the violations and facts
specifically alleged above.

31. Full payment of the civil penalty, as provided in Section VII (Terms of Payment) shall satisfy the
requirements of this CAFO; but, shall not in any case affect the right of EPA or the United States
to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations
of law. 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(c).

32. Any violation of this CAFO may result in a civil judicial action for civil penalties as provided in
Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), as well as criminal sanctions as provided in
Section 113(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(c). EPA may use any information submitted under
this CAFO in an administrative, civil judicial, or criminal action.

33. Nothing in this CAFO shall relieve Respondent of the duty to comply with all applicable
provisions of the Act and other federal, state, or local laws or statutes, nor shall it restrict EPA’s
authority to seek compliance with any applicable laws or regulations, nor shall it be construed to
be a ruling on, or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state, or local permit, except
as expressly provided herein.

34. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the power of EPA to undertake any action against
Respondent or any person in response to conditions that may present an imminent and substantial
endangerment as provided under the Act.

35. The terms, conditions, and compliance requirements of this CAFO may not be modified or
amended except upon the written agreement of both Parties, and approval of the Regional
Judicial Officer.

36. The provisions of this CAFO shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its successors
and assigns. Respondent shall direct its officers, directors, employees, agents, trustees, and
authorized representatives to comply with the provisions of this CAFO.

37. Any change in the legal status of the Respondent, or change in ownership, partnership, corporate
or legal status relating to the Facility, will not in any way alter Respondent’s obligations and
responsibilities under this CAFO.
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38. By signing this Consent Agreement, Respondent acknowledges that this CAFO will be available
to the public and agrees that this CAFO does not contain any confidential business information
or personally identifiable information.

39. By signing this Consent Agreement, the Complainant and the undersigned representative of
Respondent each certify that he or she is fully authorized to execute and enter into the terms and
conditions of this CAFO and has the legal capacity to bind the party he or she represents to this
CAFO.

40. By signing this Consent Agreement, both Parties agree that each party’s obligations under this
CAFO constitute sufficient consideration for the other party’s obligations.

41. By signing this Consent Agreement, Respondent certifies that the information it has supplied
concerning this matter was at the time of submission, and continues to be, true, accurate, and
complete for each such submission, response, and statement. Respondent acknowledges that
there are significant penalties for submitting false or misleading information, including the
possibility of fines and imprisonment for knowing submission of such information, under 18
U.S.C. § 1001.

42. EPA also reserves the right to revoke this CAFO and settlement penalty if and to the extent that
EPA finds, after signing this CAFO, that any information provided by Respondent was
materially false or inaccurate at the time such information was provided to EPA. If such false or
inaccurate material was provided, EPA reserves the right to assess and collect any and all civil
penalties for any violation described herein. EPA shall give Respondent notice of its intent to
revoke, which shall not be effective until received by Respondent in writing.

43. It is the intent of the parties that the provisions of this CAFO are severable. If any provision or
authority of this CAFO or the application of this CAFO to any party or circumstances is held by
any judicial or administrative authority to be invalid or unenforceable, the application of such
provisions to other parties or circumstances and the remainder of the CAFO shall remain in force
and shall not be affected thereby.

44. Unless specifically stated otherwise in this CAFO, each party shall bear its own attorney’s fees,
costs, and disbursements incurred in this proceeding.

IX. EFFECTIVE DATE

45. This CAFO shall become effective after execution of the Final Order by the Regional Judicial
Officer, on the date of filing with the Hearing Clerk.

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank
Complainant and Respondent will Each Sign on Separate Pages
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The foregoing Consent Agreement in the Matter of DPC Enterprises, L.P., Docket No. CAA-04-2024-
0303(b), is Hereby Stipulated, Agreed, and Approved for Entry.

FOR RESPONDENT:
Q4 Mortnre - May 15, 2024
Signature Date

Printed Name: Joy Montanio

Title: Environmental, Health, Safety, & Security Manager

Address: 1919 Jacintoport Bivd, Houston, Texas 77015
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The foregoing Consent Agreement in the Matter of DPC Enterprises, L.P., Docket No. CAA-04-2024-
0303(b), is Hereby Stipulated, Agreed, and Approved for Entry.

FOR COMPLAINANT:

Digitally signed by KERIEMA

KERIEMA NEWMAN NewmAN

Date: 2024.07.02 17:20:30 -04'00'

Keriema S. Newman

Director

Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4

In the Matter of:

DPC Enterprises, L.P., Docket No. CAA-04-2024-0303(b)

Respondent.

FINAL ORDER

The Regional Judicial Officer is authorized to ratify this Consent Agreement which memorializes a
settlement between Complainant and Respondent. 40 C.F.R. §8 22.4(b) and 22.18(b)(3). The foregoing
Consent Agreement is, therefore, hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by reference into this Final
Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment
of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the foregoing Consent
Agreement effective immediately upon filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the
Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 8§ 22.18 and
22.31.

BEING AGREED, IT IS SO ORDERED.

TANYA poioe:,
Date: 2024.07.05

FLOYD 13?:2e9:21 -04'00'

Tanya Floyd

Regional Judicial Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| certify that the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order, in the Matter of DPC Enterprises,
L.P., Docket No. CAA-04-2024-0303(b), were filed and copies of the same were emailed to the parties
as indicated below.

Via email to all parties at the following email addresses:

To Respondent: Scott Janoe, Attorney
Baker Botts L.L.P.
Scott.Janoe @bakerbotts.com
910 Louisiana St.
Houston, Texas 77002
(713) 229-1553

To EPA: Justin Stark, Case Development Officer
Stark.Justin@epa.gov
(404) 562-8305

Lucia Mendez, Attorney-Advisor
Mendez.Lucia@epa.gov
(404) 562-9637

SHANNON Digitally signed by

SHANNON
RICHARDSQO RICHARDSON

Date: 2024.07.08
N 08:57:35 -04'00'

Shannon L. Richardson, Regional Hearing Clerk
r4_regional_hearing_clerk@epa.gov
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